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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR IMMIGRATION REVIEW 
OFFICE OF THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING OFFICER 

 
 

January 23, 2024 
 
 
ANA MARIA RAVINES DE SCHUR, ) 
Complainant, ) 
       ) 8 U.S.C. § 1324b Proceeding 
v.       ) OCAHO Case No. 2020B00093 
 ) 
EASTER SEALS-GOODWILL NORTHERN ) 
ROCKY MOUNTAIN, INC., ) 
Respondent. ) 
       ) 
 
 
Appearances: Ana Maria Ravines de Schur, pro se, for Complainant  
  Jean E. Faure, Esq., for Respondent 
 
 

ORDER LIFTING STAY OF PROCEEDINGS & DISMISSING CASE WITH PREJUDICE 
 
 
On June 23, 2022, the Court issued an Order deeming the Complaint abandoned.1  Ravines de 
Schur v. Easter Seals-Goodwill Northern Rocky Mountain, Inc., 15 OCAHO no. 1388g (2022).  

 
1  On October 15, 2021, the Court issued an Order on Respondent’s Renewed Motion to Compel.  
Ravines De Schur v. Easter Seals-Goodwill Northern Rocky Mountain, 15 OCAHO no. 1388d 
(2021).  The Court warned “that failure to comply with this Order may result in sanctions 
pursuant to 28 C.F.R. § 68.23(c).”  Id. at 14 (citations omitted).  
 
On January 14, 2022, the Court issued an Order to Show Cause requiring Complainant submit a 
filing explaining why she failed to produce discovery, and provide the aforementioned discovery.  
Order to Show Cause 3.  Once again, the Court warned Complainant that failure to respond may 
result in sanctions, such as dismissal.  Id. at 3–4.  Complainant did not file a response.   
 
On April 14, 2022, the Court issued an Order Imposing Discovery Sanctions on Complainant and 
Updating Case Schedule (Order Imposing Discovery Sanctions) in which it imposed discovery 
sanctions on Complainant and required her to file a statement clarifying her interest in continued 
participation in her case.  Ravines de Schur v. Easter Seals-Goodwill Northern Rocky Mountain, 
15 OCAHO no. 1388f (2022).  The Court warned Complainant “[f]ailure to respond to this 
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Specifically, the Court noted that a Complainant “shall be deemed to have abandoned a 
complaint” if she “fails to respond to orders issued by the Administrative Law Judge” (ALJ).  Id. 
at 2 (citing 28 C.F.R. § 68.37(b)(1)).  The Court concluded this Complainant “failed to respond 
to or comply with multiple Court orders,” even after being placed on notice of the consequences 
of such failure.  Id. The Court determined dismissal with prejudice was appropriate2 in this case.  
Id. at 2–3.  After concluding it was not “in a position to issue a final order at this time,” 3 the 
Court elected to “hold the dismissal with prejudice in abeyance,” and stay remaining deadlines.  
Id. at 3. 
 
“On October 12, 2023, the Department of Justice published an interim final rule providing for 
review by the Attorney General of OCAHO Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) final orders in 
cases arising under 28 U.S.C. § 1324b.”  Zajradhara v. HDH Co., Ltd., 16 OCAHO no. 1417d, 2 
(2023) (citing Office of the Chief Administrative Hearing Officer, Review Procedures, 88 Fed. 
Reg. 70586 (Oct. 12, 2023) (codified at 28 C.F.R. pt. 68)).  The regulation resolved the issue that 
led to this stay.  See id.; Heath v. SpringShine Consulting, 16 OCAHO no. 1421d, 2 (2023); 
Zajradhara v. E-Supply Enters., 16 OCAHO no. 1438h, 2 (2023).  Accordingly, the Court now 
lifts the stay of proceedings. 
 
 

 
instant order will be construed as abandonment of her complaint pursuant to 28 C.F.R. § 
68.37(b)(1).”  Id. at 5.   
 
2  In its June 23, 2022 order, the Court noted that:  
 

Dismissal with prejudice is appropriate given the extensive 
litigation of this case.  See Tingling v. City of Richmond, 13 
OCAHO no. 1324e, 2 (2021) (dismissing a case with prejudice that 
had an impending hearing date); Rogers v. Andrus Transp. Servs., 
502 F.3d 1147, 1152 (10th Cir. 2007) (finding “prejudice to [the 
defendant], which had prepared for trial and wished to conclude 
the proceedings”).  In reaching this conclusion, the Court is 
mindful of the prejudice to Respondent.  See Gripe v. City of Enid, 
312 F.3d 1184, 1188 (10th Cir. 2002) (affirming dismissal with 
prejudice upon finding that the plaintiff’s repeated failures to 
follow court orders “prejudiced the defendants and the court”). 

 
Ravines de Schur, 15 OCAHO no. 1388g, at 3 n.3. 
 
3   In support of this proposition, the Court cited A.S. v. Amazon Web Servs. Inc., 14 OCAHO no. 
1381h, 2 n.4 (2021) (CAHO Order). 
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With the stay lifted, the Court now executes the decision it previously held in abeyance.  The 
complaint is DISMISSED WITH PREJUDICE. 
 
This is a Final  Order. 
 
SO ORDERED.  
 
Dated and entered on January 23, 2024. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Honorable Andrea R. Carroll-Tipton 
      Administrative Law Judge 
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Appeal Information 
 

This order shall become the final agency order unless modified, vacated, or remanded by the 
Attorney General. Provisions governing the Attorney General’s review of this order are set forth 
at 28 C.F.R. pt. 68.  Within sixty days of the entry of an Administrative Law Judge’s final order, 
the Attorney General may direct the CAHO to refer any final order to the Attorney General for 
review, pursuant to 28 C.F.R. § 68.55.  
 
Any person aggrieved by the final order has sixty days from the date of entry of the final order to 
petition for review in the United States Court of Appeals for the circuit in which the violation is 
alleged to have occurred or in which the employer resides or transacts business.  See 8 U.S.C. § 
1324b(i)(1); 28 C.F.R. § 68.57.  A petition for review must conform to the requirements of Rule 
15 of the Federal Rules of Appellate Procedure. 
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 
EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR IMMIGRATION REVIEW 

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING OFFICER 
 
 

January 30, 2024 
 
 
ANA MARIA RAVINES DE SCHUR, ) 
Complainant, ) 
       ) 8 U.S.C. § 1324b Proceeding 
v.       ) OCAHO Case No. 2020B00093 
 ) 
EASTER SEALS-GOODWILL NORTHERN ) 
ROCKY MOUNTAIN, INC., ) 
Respondent. ) 
       ) 
 
 
Appearances: Ana Maria Ravines de Schur, pro se, for Complainant  
  Jean E. Faure, Esq., for Respondent 
 

ERRATA 
 

The Order Lifting Stay of Proceedings & Dismissing Case With Prejudice, issued on January 23, 
2024, is hereby amended to correct the following: 
 
1. Page 2 is corrected to read: “On October 12, 2023, the Department of Justice published 
an interim final rule providing for review by the Attorney General of OCAHO Administrative 
Law Judge (ALJ) final orders in cases arising under 8 U.S.C. § 1324b.”  Zajradhara v. HDH Co., 
Ltd., 16 OCAHO no. 1417d, 2 (2023) (citing Office of the Chief Administrative Hearing Officer, 
Review Procedures, 88 Fed. Reg. 70586 (Oct. 12, 2023) (codified at 28 C.F.R. pt. 68)). 

 
 
SO ORDERED.  
 
Dated and entered on January 30, 2024. 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Honorable Andrea R. Carroll-Tipton 
      Administrative Law Judge 


